
Jenny Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Fax : Bideford (01237) 479164

Date: 11 January 2019

TO:  THE CHAIR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE TORRIDGE DISTRICT 
COUNCIL

FULL COUNCIL MEETING

TOWN HALL - BRIDGE STREET, BIDEFORD, EX39 2HS 
 Monday 21 January 2019 at 6.30 pm

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the

aforementioned date and time

Head of Paid Service

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the 
meeting.

P R A Y E R S 
For those who wish to participate - Prayers will be held at 6.25 pm.

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting

2.  COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 3 - 9)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 10 December 2018.

3.  PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
15 minute period for public contributions



- 2 -

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being discussed.

5.  AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

6.  TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

7.  TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

8.  POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACES REVIEW 2018 (Pages 10 - 13)
To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service

9.  PAY POLICY REQUIREMENTS OF THE LOCALISM ACT (Pages 14 - 19)
To receive the report of the Deputy Leader & HR Manager

10.  PETITIONS 
To receive petitions (if any)

11.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

12.  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
The Chair to move:

“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972”

13.  PART II - (CLOSED SESSION) 

Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed.

Meeting Organiser:  Democratic Services Tel. 01237 428703



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 10 December 2018 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillor S Inch (Chair)

Councillors D McGeough, A Boyle, D Brenton, M Brown, 
P Christie, A Dart, G Dezart, A Eastman, Z Gregorek, P Hackett, 
R Hicks, J Himan, D Hurley, T Inch, K James, R Julian, 
M Langmead, N Laws, J Morrish, I Parker, P Pennington, 
C Simmons, P Watson, J Whittaker, R Wiseman and Hutchings

ALSO PRESENT: S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources)
S Dorey, Legal Services Manager
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer
M Richards, Democratic Services Officer

Mr S Dengate, Non-elected Member

2 members of the public.

Prior to the commencement of the meeting the Chair extended a welcome to newly 
elected Councillor John Hutchings.

21.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from the Head of Paid Service Mrs J Wallace 
and Councillors R Lock, K Davis, C Cottle-Hunkin, B Boundy, 
J Langton-Lockton, J Hellyer, T Johns, R Boughton, R Hancock and 
Z Gregorek.

22.   COUNCIL MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor M Langmead, seconded by Councillor A Inch and -

Resolved:   That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 October 2018  be confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For 23, Abstentions 3) 

23.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

Mr C Wileman addressed the meeting and spoke regarding his concerns about the 
War Memorial in Bideford.  Remembrance Day is important to him and he always 
tries to attend the service in the park each year.  He  said he felt the Memorial was 
understated; the engraving was not appropriate and the site was inaccessible to the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

public during Remembrance ceremonies.  The Memorial should be to remember all 
people who gave their lives in war and not just the people of Bideford.  He 
concluded by saying that the Memorial should be re-sited to a more suitable place 
and the inscription to be more fitting with no reference to Bideford Town Council. 

24.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

25.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

There were no Part II items.

26.   TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR 

The Chair had received a request from Councillor Hackett, Chair of Audit & 
Governance Committee, who wished to address the meeting on GDPR. 

Councillor Hackett urged all Members to undertake the online training provided, 
which is available until Christmas.

27.   TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9 

There were no questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9.

28.   RECENT POLICE REVIEW 

Superintendent Davies told Members that levels of crime in the District had 
increased by 1 or 2%, albeit the increase was not as great as was being seen 
nationally.  He acknowledged that changes to the way crimes are now recorded did 
influence the statistics, but the increase did reflect a real increase, particularly in 
crimes such and robbery and assault.  Hidden crimes, such as domestic violence 
and abuse, were always difficult to capture in the statistics but they were now 
accounting for 1/3 of all reported crime.

The local Police Force continued to work effectively in a challenging environment - 
80% of the work the force carries out does not relate to crime.  Project Genesis 
commenced approximately 18 months ago and set out to review resourcing.  
Members were informed that PCSOs were only a small part of the manpower and 
cuts to this area would be addressed by natural wastage.  Superintendent Davies 
added that PCSOs were an integral part of the fabric of local policing.

Updates were given on 3 key areas:

County Lines – Out of area violent gangs had tried to infiltrate the District and use 
vulnerable children to deal drugs.  The local Police Force had thwarted their 
attempts to the extent that two of the biggest lines had now given up.  However, the 
threat was ongoing and the force remained vigilant.

Page 4



3

Antisocial Behaviour - An increase in antisocial behaviour had been identified, with 
criminality linked to groups in town centres.  Local authorities need to work with the 
police to reduce the incidents.

Road safety – The most significant risk to public safety is road traffic collision.  The 
number of traffic officers will be increased and the “no excuses” team will target 
more dangerous driving.  Superintendent Davies sought to promote Operation 
Snap which encouraged drivers with dash cameras to report dangerous driving.  
Speed Watch was also an initiative being developed.

During the ensuing discussions, Superintendent Davies acknowledged that street 
pastors, outreach and youth organisations played an important role in the 
community.  He spoke about the safeguarding measures in place to protect victims 
of domestic violence and abuse.

Superintendent Davies and Inspector Kenneally left the meeting.

29.   ADOPTION OF A 'STATEMENT OF LICENSING' POLICY AND GAMBLING 
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

Councillor J Hutchings declared a personal interest – Landlord of a public house in 
Holsworthy

The purpose of the report, presented by the Environmental Health and Community 
Safety Manager, was for Members to formally adopt a Statement of Licensing 
Policy and a revised Gambling Statement of Principles.   She explained it is a legal 
requirement that the documents be adopted by the Licensing Authority.

Councillor Brenton had concerns with regard to the prominent location of two 
betting shops on Bideford Quay, particularly as the risk assessment talks about 
consideration being given to where betting shops are placed.   This he felt would 
encourage gambling, particularly with young people.   He requested that the 
Licensing Committee and Authority give consideration to this matter.
The Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager agreed to take to 
Licensing Committee for review.

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch, seconded by Councillor K James and –

Resolved:

That the ‘Statement of Licensing’ and ‘Gambling Statement of Principles’ be 
formally adopted.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

30.   LOCALISATION OF COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT 

The Customer Support Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was:

Page 5



4

1. To update Members on the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2018/19
2. To obtain approval for the current 2018/19 Scheme to roll over to 2019/20
3. To obtain approval for the current Exceptional Hardship Policy to roll over to 

2019/20

During the discussion the following points were raised :

 Advertising of the Council Tax Support Scheme and exceptional hardship 
scheme  – it was confirmed that details are on council tax bills, website and 
also partner agencies are advised of the Scheme

 Collection rate of council tax – TDC are in the top quartile of other authorities

 Risk Management – the financial effect of a decision made by Members 
either to change the Scheme or not was given

Councillor Morrish commended the Council Tax Department, particularly with 
regard to responses he had received from them.

Recommendation 3 - Councillor S Inch directed that the membership of the Task 
and Finish Group to be agreed by Group Leaders.

It was proposed by Councillor Morrish, seconded by Councillor A Inch and –

Resolved:

i. That the roll over of the 2018/19 Scheme to 2019/10 be approved

ii. That the roll over of the Exceptional Hardship Policy in relation to the Council 
Tax Support Scheme for 2019/20 be approved

iii. That a Task & Finish Group be convened to review the ongoing suitability of 
the existing scheme, together with alternative options for a simplified scheme 
for 2020/21

(Vote:  For 25, Against 1)

31.   APPOINTMENT OF MONITORING OFFICER 

The purpose of the report was to seek Member endorsement of the appointment of 
a Monitoring Officer, Data Protection Officer and Senior Responsible Officer for 
Regulatory Investigating Powers Act (RIPA).

Staci Dorey left the meeting for this item.

It was proposed by Councillor Langmead, seconded by Councillor Hicks      and –

Resolved:

That Staci Dorey be appointed as permanent Monitoring Officer.

Page 6



5

(Vote:  For - Unanimous)

32.   CYCLE OF COMMITTEE MEETING 2019/2020 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report, the purpose of which was 
for Members to approve a programme of Committee meetings for 2019/20.

It was proposed by Councillor Watson, seconded by Councillor Langmead and –

Resolved:

That the programme of Committee dates for 2019/20 attached to the report be 
approved.

(Vote:   For – Unanimous)

33.   HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST - JOINT COMMITTEE - COUNCIL UPDATE 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained that the purpose of the report was to 
summarise the progress made by the Committee over recent months in key areas 
of activity, and to set out actions proposed in the coming months.   As part of this 
report there are specific recommendations for Council to consider.

When presenting the report Members were referred to the recommendations, and 
advised that the contribution for 2019/20 would be a modest sum of £1,400.

Councillor Whittaker addressed the meeting in support of the recommendations.

Councillor Hicks, although in support, raised concerns with regard to the Local 
Industrial Strategy.  He asked that future development  be kept under review, by 
those from this Authority who attend the meetings, to ensure that all districts be 
included.

Brexit Resilience Opportunities Group - Councillor Christie asked that Grant funding 
figures are made available as to how much money the Torridge area had received 
from the EU.   The Strategic Manager (Resources) agreed to make enquiries into 
this matter.

It was proposed by Councillor Whittaker,  seconded by Councillor Watson and –

Resolved:

a. That the progress report setting out the work of the Heart of the South West 
(HotSW) Joint Committee since its establishment in March 2018 be noted

b. That delegation of the development and endorsement of the HotSW Local 
Industrial Strategy (LIS) to the HotSW Joint Committee (noting that final 
approval of the HotSWLIS rests with the HotSW Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) and the Government) be agreed

Page 7



6

c. That the Budget statement for 2018/19 as set out in Appendix B attached to 
the report, and in accordance with the decisions taken at the time the 
Committee was established, the Council will be asked to make an annual 
budgetary provision to meet  the support costs of the Joint Committee in line 
with the 2018/19 contribution be noted.   Final clarification on any additional 
2019/20 budget requirement will be provided following the completion of the 
review of the Joint Committee’s role, function and management support 
arrangements and development of its work programme for 2019/20.

d. The Budget and Cost-sharing Agreement as set out in Appendix B attached 
to the report be agreed.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

34.   COUNCIL TAX BASE (2019/20) 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained that the tabled copy of the report 
contained figures  which required by legislation to be extracted from the Council 
Tax system as at 30 November, which meant they could not be issued out by the 
Agenda deadline.   .   

In accordance with Council Tax regulations, the Authority are required to set its 
Council Tax Base by 31 January.

It was proposed by Councillor A Inch,  seconded by Councillor Watson and – 

Resolved:

That the Council Tax Base for 2019/20, as tabled at the meeting, be agreed.

(Vote:  For 25, Against 1)

35.   MID-YEAR REVIEW OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that the Council is legally required 
under the CIPFA Code of Treasury Management adopted by the Authority, to 
present a mid year review on treasury management activity.  The report presented 
activity in the year to date.

During the discussion Councillor Christie referred to the Council’s debt with the 
Public Work Loans Board.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained that 
loans were at the time of TDC having local authority houses, and there was a debt 
outstanding at the time of the transfer of the housing stock. The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) agreed to circulate further details.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Langmead  and –

Resolved:

Page 8



7

 That the Mid-Year Treasury Management Review be noted

 That the short term limit on the Council’s bank account be increased to £8m.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

36.   PETITIONS 

There were no petitions.

37.   NOTICES OF MOTION 

There were no notices of motion.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.05 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 9



REPORT OF Head of Paid Service
To: Full Council
Subject: Polling District and Polling Places Review 2018
Date: 21 January 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To confirm proposals of the Returning Officer following a review of Polling Districts and Polling 
Places within the Torridge District.

1. INTRODUCTION
Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its area into 
polling districts and to designate a polling place for each district for UK Parliamentary 
elections. It also has to keep these arrangements under review. The arrangements made for 
parliamentary elections are also used at other elections.
The Electoral Administration Act 2006, as amended, introduced a duty on all local authorities 
in Great Britain to review their polling districts and polling places at least once every five years. 
Torridge District Council undertook the last full compulsory review, including wide consultation, 
between September 2014 and December 2014.
Since then, issues have arisen about two of the council’s designated polling places and it was 
therefore necessary to carry out a partial review in Broadheath and Coham Bridge wards with 
a full review to be carried out in autumn 2019.

Under the legislation the responsibility for the review of polling districts and polling places rests 
with the Local Authority while the provision of polling stations lies with the Returning Officer 
personally.

Definition of terms
Polling District – the area created by the division of a constituency, ward or division into 
smaller parts, within which a polling place can be determined which is convenient to electors.

Polling Place – a geographical area in which a polling station is located. The geographical 
area can be defined as tightly as a particular building or as widely as the entire polling district. 
Where a polling place is not named, by default it is the whole polling district.

Polling Station – the actual location, chosen by the Returning Officer, where the process of 
voting takes place and must be within the polling place for the particular polling district. 

2. REPORT
The Council carried out a consultation exercise between 17th December 2018 and 9 January 
2019.
 
The Council has been asked to consider an alternative venue for polling district GQ 
Broadwoodwidger (Ivyhouse) and GR Broadwoodwidger (Thorn Cross). The alternative venue 
is The Community Hub, Broadwoodwidger, Lifton, PL16 0JH.

The Returning Officer’s staff visited the venue and consider it to be a suitable venue as it has 
a large meeting room, on-site parking, good facilities and disabled access.

The Council has been informed that Woodacott Methodist Chapel, Thornbury has closed and 
is no longer available to use as a polling station.

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



The Returning Officer’s staff approached Thornbury Parish Council for an alternative venue. 
Thornbury Parish Council suggested Thornbury Holiday Park, Holsworthy, EX39 4PU. The 
Returning Officer’s staff visited the venue and considers it to be a suitable venue as it has a 
large meeting room, on-site parking good facilities and disabled access.

The first stage of the review process was to give notice to all relevant stakeholders:
 Torridge District Ward Members
 Devon County Councillors covering the Torridge District
 Parish/Town Councils (via Parish Clerks)
 Member of Parliament for Torridge & West Devon
 Local Political Parties
 The (Acting) Returning Officer for the Torridge & West Devon Constituency
 Age Concern (Torridge Branch)
 RNIB (Exeter)
 Scope (London) 

The second part of the review was to accept and review representations received. 
Representations have been received from a resident of Thornbury and the Parish Council of 
Thornbury (see Appendix A for details):

In light of the responses it is proposed that:

a.  The Community Hub, Broadwoodwidger is the polling place for polling district GQ 
Broadwoodwidger (Ivyhouse) and GR Broadwoodwidger (Thorn Cross).

b. Thornbury Holiday Park, Holsworthy is the polling place for polling district IO 
Thornbury.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
The Council has complied with its legal duty to conduct a compulsory review of its polling 
districts and polling places.  

The decision to approve the outcome of the review can only be made by Full Council.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications

Human Resources Implications
There are no human resources implications

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
An assessment as to the suitability of each polling station has been made to ensure that they 
are accessible to all. Staff will be trained to ensure they can provide adequate support to any 
groups that require assistance. 

Risk Management
There are no risks as a result of this Review.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Carrying out the Review complies with the legal duty

Page 11



Ward Member Views

Councillor Watson – I support the recommendation that the Community Hub in 
Broadwoodwidger is used as the polling place for Broadwoodwidger (Ivyhouse) and 
Broadwoodwidger (Thorn Cross)

Councillor Hackett – I agree with the recommendation that Thornbury Holiday Park is used as 
the polling place for Thornbury.

4. CONCLUSIONS
As required by law a Polling District review has been carried out with the assistance of local 
representatives within the District.  Detailed below are my recommendations.  If implemented, 
any electors affected will be written to with details of the changes affecting their voting 
arrangements.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

1. The Community Hub, Broadwoodwidger is the polling place for polling district GQ 
Broadwoodwidger (Ivyhouse) and GR Broadwoodwidger (Thorn Cross).

2. Thornbury Holiday Park, Holsworthy is the polling place for polling district IO Thornbury.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation – 17 December 2018 – 9 January 2019 

Contact Officer: Tom Vanstone

Background Papers: Results of the review.

Page 12



Appendix A – Representations Received – 2018                 
Start Date 17 December 2018
End Date 9 January 2019

Responses Received:

From Polling 
Station

Comment

Thornbury 
Resident

Thornbury Do you approve of Thornbury Holiday Park being used as a polling station for the IO polling district?

I approve this venue as an interim measure, but it should not be considered as more than a very temporary solution as 
it is possible THP could, quite reasonably, withdraw this offer to host the Polling Station at any point if it proves to be 
inconvenient or disruptive to their business.

Furthermore, in terms of inclusivity a venue that is a licenced premises might deter some groups of the population who 
do not use alcohol, for example Muslims, from voting, which is not acceptable. In practical terms this is not currently as 
issue in the village but that is irrelevant to the argument regarding THP’s acceptability to such people.

Are there any other alternative venues that the Council should consider?

No, the Church has no toilet facilities and is unheated so is totally unsuitable.

The village needs a public meeting place in the form of a village hall and this is a further argument for allowing one to 
be built, something that is currently being blocked by Torridge’s Planning Department for no apparently good reason.

Thornbury 
Parish Council

Thornbury  Please note that Thornbury Parish Council consider the Thornbury Holiday Park as an 'interim' measure, when T.P.C's 
planning application for a new Village Hall is passed the situation regarding a venue for a Polling Station would then be 
resolved.

P
age 13



REPORT OF Deputy Leader & HR Manager

To: Full Council

Subject: Pay Policy requirements of the Localism Act

Date: January 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

1. This report invites Members to agree to a Pay Policy statement, in accordance with the requirements 
of the Localism Act

2. The report does not ask Members to agree to any changes to the Pay Policy or the remuneration of 
senior officers.  

1. INTRODUCTION

Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act) requires English and Welsh local authorities to 
produce a statutory pay policy statement for each financial year. 

2. REPORT

Current Approach to Pay and Reward

About 10 years ago, the Council modernised its pay and reward arrangements through the 
implementation of single status. With the exception of the most senior managers,  all staff are on 
grades within a single pay spine, with their terms and conditions reflecting a nationally agreed 
package (known as the ‘Green Book’). In general terms, these arrangements are owned and 
accepted by colleagues, perhaps as best evidenced by the absence of a ‘grading appeal’ culture. All 
grades provide opportunity for progression by annual increments and other than operational staff 
most colleagues have opportunity to attain a work-life balance by using ‘flexi-time’.

The Council’s most senior officers are paid on salaries set by the Council with the benefit of 
external advice. The salary for the Head of Paid Service was set prior to her appointment in 2012 
whilst the pay of the Strategic Manager (Resources) was set by Full Council prior to his recruitment 
in Autumn 2014. It is proposed that the salaries for these officers will be increased by 2% from 
April 2019 in accordance with agreed pay settlement for Chief officers and Chief Executives

Pay Policy Statement 

Annex A is a draft Pay Policy which, subject to the approval of Full Council, will be published on the 
Council’s web-site. 

The Pay Policy is a statement of current practice and can be altered by Full Council at any time. In 
any event a Pay Policy statement for 2020/21 and so on will in the future have to be specifically 
agreed each financial year. 

The Act requires that the Pay Policy statement applies specifically to Chief Officers (a term which 
includes both statutory Chief Officers and non statutory Chief Officers) and it is proposed that at 

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



Torridge this includes those officers whose terms and conditions reflect those determined by the 
Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local Authorities and specifically the Head of 
Paid Service and Strategic Manager. 

The Pay Policy and the Appendix to that policy (also attached) meets the requirements of the Act 
and has regard to both guidance and recommended practice. In particular, regard has been paid to 
the Hutton Report (on public sector pay) which was published in 2011. Hutton concluded that the 
most appropriate metric for calculating pay dispersion is the multiple of chief executive to median 
earnings.  He also concluded that tracking this multiple will ensure public service organisations are 
accountable for the relationship between the pay of their executives and the wider workforce. The 
current multiples are set out in the appendix to the Pay Policy.

The draft Pay Policy Statement indicates that the Council will track this multiple annually and will 
also publish the following information (included as an Annex to the Policy):

 the level and elements of remuneration for each senior officer;

 the remuneration of the lowest paid employee;

 the relationship between the remuneration of the Council’s senior officers and other 
officers;

 other specific aspects of senior officer remuneration, and

 the multiple of chief executive to the average or mean earnings, which is another metric 
for pay dispersion referred to in guidance.

Future Developments

The Act does not require employers to review their remuneration arrangements for all or any staff 
and nothing in the Act or the guidance supersedes the existing responsibilities that a Council has as 
an employer. Equally, nothing in the Act or the guidance gives the Council any authority to 
unilaterally alter existing terms and conditions of employment. In his most recent correspondence 
the Secretary of State only refers to Members voting on a package at the time of appointment and 
termination.

With regard to any future Management changes Members can be assured that by agreeing to this 
Policy now, it will not preclude the development of revised arrangements for whatever senior posts 
may exist in the future. Indeed, the Policy confirms that if such posts are to be ‘Chief Officers’ then 
the pay attached to such posts can only be set by Full Council with the benefit of external advice.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

Publication of a Pay Policy is a requirement of the Localism Act

Financial Implications

Human Resources Implications

Determining pay and reward arrangements has the potential to fundamentally alter the 
employment relationship and any changes need to be handled with care. 

Page 15



Sustainability Implications

Equality/Diversity

Any changes to pay and reward arrangements must be ‘equality proofed’

Risk Management

Not having an updated published Pay Policy in place would represent an unacceptable risk to the 
Council’s reputation.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Ward Member and Leader Member Views

I have seen and support the pay policy which is fundamentally the same policy as last year

4. CONCLUSIONS

The reward arrangements for senior officers are very transparent and reflect external advice. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council should approve the Pay Policy

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Deputy Leader – January 2019

Contact Officer: Sarah Ayres
Human Resources Manager

Page 16



Torridge District Council

Pay Policy Statement – as at March 2019

Purpose and Scope of the Policy

1. Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English and Welsh local authorities to produce a 
statutory pay policy statement for 2012/13 and for each financial year after that. 

2. In the context of managing scarce public resources, the Council seeks to balance the need to set 
pay levels that are adequate to secure and retain high-quality employees dedicated to the service 
of the public, with a need to ensure that pay is not unnecessarily generous or otherwise excessive.  
The Council also recognises that individuals have contractual and other rights that cannot be 
altered unilaterally by the Council.

3. Over recent years the Council has modernised its pay and reward arrangements through the 
implementation of single status and by setting the pay of its most senior officers with the benefit of 
external advice. In addition, the pay of senior officers has been published on the Councils web site.

4. This pay policy statement applies to those officers whose terms and conditions reflect those 
determined by the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers of Local Authorities. For the 
purposes of this policy the Council’s Chief Officers are the:

 Head of Paid Service
 Strategic Manager (Resources)

5. The Hutton Report (on public sector pay, published in 2011) outlined that the most appropriate 
metric for pay dispersion is the multiple of Chief Executive to median earnings.  It suggests that 
tracking this multiple will ensure public service organisations are accountable for the relationship 
between the pay of their executives and the wider workforce. Through this pay policy statement, 
the Council will track this multiple annually and will also publish the following information (please 
see the Appendix):

 The level and elements of remuneration for each of the posts identified in paragraph 4 above;
 Other specific aspects of remuneration associated with these posts.
 The remuneration of the lowest paid employees;
 The multiple of Head of Paid Service salary to median 
 The multiple of Head of Paid service salary to the average or mean earnings, which is another 

metric for pay dispersion.

Specific Policy Aspects

6. When setting or revising salaries for these posts: 

 The Council will make comparisons with similar organisations, with an aim to paying at or 
around the median comparable salary level.

 The Council will take independent pay advice from South West Councils. In addition, where 
senior roles also include responsibilities for other organisations the Council will confer with 
those organisations about appropriate remuneration arrangements.

 The Leader will then make recommendations which will be subject to the approval of Full 
Council.    

Page 17



 In formulating his/her recommendations, the Leader will have due regard to balance the need 
to ensure value for money with the need for the Council to recruit and retain high quality senior 
officers in the context of national, regional and local labour markets and the particular 
circumstances or challenges faced at that time. This may include any market supplement. 

 In any event, other than any cost of living increase (that will be made in line with National Joint 
Council recommendations), any changes to the remuneration packages for these officers will be 
subject to Full Council approval.

7.  Consistent with the relevant national terms and conditions, Chief Officers are required to devote 
their whole time service to the work of the Council (which may for this purpose also include other 
organisations where there is responsibility for such activities) and cannot engage in business or 
take up other paid employment without the express permission of the Council. In addition, and 
although these officers are employed for a notional 37 hours per week, they are expected to work 
such additional hours as may be reasonably required, without additional recompense or time off in 
lieu.

8. Any termination payments to Chief Officers on ceasing office will, in the event of redundancy, 
comply with the Council’s policy for managing change.   Any other payments on termination of 
employment will accord with the arrangements set out in the Council’s constitution and scheme of 
delegation. 

9.  Additional payments are made by Central Government to officers carrying out additional duties at 
elections.  These payments are not within the scope of this policy.

Monitoring 

10.Through this policy the pay multiple of the Head of Paid Service will be monitored annually.  Should 
the multiplier between the annual salary paid to a full time employee (excluding any apprentices) 
on the lowest spinal column point and the annual salary paid to the Head of Paid Service be greater 
than 10, this will be reported by the Leader of the Council to Full Council for consideration. 

11.  Annual monitoring of this policy will take place in relation to each forthcoming financial year. As at 
31 March 2019 the pay multiple will be 5.30.

Outcomes

12.  In determining this policy the Council will ensure that the process for setting pay at a senior level is 
transparent.  This policy will be reviewed annually to track the relationship of Chief Officer pay with 
the rest of the workforce. Other reviews may take place as determined appropriate from time to 
time.

Policy/Strategy Consultation

13. This policy has been agreed by Full Council.

Equality Impact Considerations

14. The principles of equal pay are integral to this policy. The Council ensures equal pay through a 
transparent job evaluation process for the majority of posts and by having regard to external 
advice when setting the pay of its most senior officers, as identified in this policy.

Page 18



Appendix

The levels and elements of remuneration for each Chief Officer are:

The full time rate of pay for the lowest paid employee is as follows (not including apprentices):

The multiplier of the remuneration of the Head of Paid Service and other officers based upon taxable 
earnings:

The pay multiple this is calculated by comparing the pay of the Head of Paid Service with the 
average (or mean) and median basic pay levels. 

Post Title Remuneration

Head of Paid Service £86,855.16

Strategic Manager (Resources) £67,922.00

Post Title Remuneration

Cleaner £16,394

Post Title

Annual Median Pay of all employees, if they were 
employed full time £20,541.00

Pay multiple of Head of Paid Service to Median salary 4.22

Pay multiple of Head of Paid Service to lowest paid 
employee, if they were employed full time 5.30

Pay multiple of Head of Paid Service to mean salary if 
everyone was employed full time 3.75

Page 19


	Agenda
	2 Council Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Polling District and Polling Places Review 2018
	8a - appendix A of committee report

	9 Pay Policy requirements of the Localism Act
	Pay Policy Statement March 2019


